FINAL- NO Sig.

United States Department of the Interior Heritage Conservation and Recreation Service

# National Register of Historic Places Inventory—Nomination Form

See instructions in How to Complete National Register Forms
Type all entries—complete applicable sections

| For  | HCRS  | use | only | e de la company |
|------|-------|-----|------|-----------------|
| eci  | elved |     |      |                 |
| late | enter | ed  |      |                 |

| 1. Nan   | ne  | CONTRACTOR CONTRACTOR AND   |  | re er saktu af sventenning en occumentalesta scoroccius. Alta concursion e uns occurs de l'accomuni  |
|--|---|---|--|--|
| historic   | Kamm and Schellin   | nger Brewery  | en e   | administration-provincies not be due to be due to be a consideration of the state o |
| and/or common  | ,   | Mark Malaca Salat R   | 17 - 17 - 17 - 17 - 17 - 17 - 17 - 17 -  |  |
| 2. Loc   | ation   |   |  |  |
| street & numbe   | r 100 Center Street   | MMACHINE A QUINA NI MER ET PER CONTRA LA MANAGEMENTA LA CONTRA TIME EN CARA LA CONTRA | or references and an extraction work of the desired Profession Country and Cou | not for publication  |
| city, town   | Mishawaka   | X vicinity of   | congressional district   | Third  |
| state  | Indiana code  | 18 county   | St. Joseph   | code 141   |
| 3. Clas  | sification  |   |  |  |
| Category  district  X building(s)  structure  site  object | OwnershippublicX privateboth Public Acquisitionin processbeing considered | Status  X occupied  — unoccupied  — work in progress  Accessible  — yes: restricted  X yes: unrestricted  no  | Present Use agriculture _X commercial educational entertainment government industrial military   | museum park private residence religious scientific transportation other:   |
| 4. Own   | er of Proper  | ty  | The state of the s |  |
| name   | 100 Center Partners   | hip   | METORICO ETC. METORICO   | maarika anka maana maarika maa ka ta'ay ka a markina a danka ada ah ka   |
| street & number  | 100 Center Street   | ripped for the t  | r- en regeren  | Levington no en est  |
| city, town   | Mishawaka   | vicinity of   | state  | Indiana  |
| 5. Loca  | ition of Lega   | I Description   |  |  |
|  |   | oseph County Record   |  |  |
| treet & number   |   | ette and Jefferson  |  | r Miss Hodly poli-   |
| ity, town  | South   |   | state  |  |
| 6. Repr  | esentation in   |   | No. of the Control of | Indiana  |
| tle  |   |   | erty been determined eleg  |  |
| ate  |   |   | federalstate   |  |
| epository for sur  | vey records   |   | State  | countylocal  |
| ty, town   | - Feeze Tanus   | unda bino affek tak   | state  | a the T Ed Lack Hold   |

#### 7. Description

| Condition |              | Check one | Check one       | one wolf prosnob sgallust |
|-----------|--------------|-----------|-----------------|---------------------------|
| excellent | deteriorated | unaltered | X original site |                           |
| X good    | ruins        | X altered | moved date      |                           |
| fair      | unexposed    |           |                 |                           |

Describe the present and original (if known) physical appearance

The Kamm and Schellinger Brewery consists of three buildings, located along the St. Joseph River in Mishawaka. The Brewery consists of three structures—the original Brewery Building (A), the Stable Building (B), and the Boiler House (C).

The original brewery building (A), which housed the Kamm and Schellinger Brewery operations and offices, is of mill construction with brick exterior walls and an interesting rubble stone foundation wall. The plan of the building is generally rectangular with some irregularities due to alterations made to accommodate the changing technology. The plan is divided into three parallel sections separated by interior brick walls with parapets at the roofs which are essentially flat. Since its original construction, buildings have been constructed on both sides (the warehouse building, Circa 1870, and the brewery additions, Circa 1875).

The building is four stories high with the front symetrically pierced by narrow double hung windows with flat arched heads on either side of a larger central window at the stairwell on each floor. The brick work appears to be Chicago common brick painted red. The entire front is topped by an elaborate metal cornice and pediment framing the date 1853. Over the center roof is a 12 foot roof vent or machine area topped by a collonaded cupola about six feet high.

The interior of the building is undistinguished except for vestiges of the old belt drive wheels and shafts and a notable below grade charcoal room formed of a brick vault about 12 feet high, 16 feet wide and 40 feet long. This room was originally used to create charcoal for the brewery filters.

Original stairways, hatchways, etc., have been modified to provide a protected fireproof stairway giving access to the various levels. The structure is now being used as office space with the interior brick and construction exposed to maintain the basic character of the building.

Additions to Original Brewery:

Ice House, said to have been built by the brewery workers, has exterior brick walls with a trussed wood roof construction. Inside, a row of steel columns runs down the center to help support the trusses and a heavy timber track base for an original overhead crane. The crane is no longer in existence, but the trusses and track rails remain.

Adjoining the Ice House is a three story building of steel and tile arch construction, the top floor still containing the brine piping for the manufacture or storage of ice. The Ice House and adjoining building have been converted to reuse as a restaurant.

Continuing to the east are a series of added spaces of generally steel and arch construction and subdivided into parallel spaces by rubble foundations and brick walls. The exterior front walls are of painted brick with windows placed in random patterns as required for some of the original interior functions. Inside are many interconnected levels with varied ceiling heights and spatial qualities.

To the north is a realtively modern building, Circa 1910, of red brick without windows, 4 stories high, rectangular in plan, with penthouse. Interior construction is steel frame and reinforced concrete. The roof is flat. Interior spaces are structural in expression

with high, 14 foot ceilings, exposed brick walls and structural steel.

FHR-8-300A (11/78)

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR HERITAGE CONSERVATION AND RECREATION SERVICE

### NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES INVENTORY -- NOMINATION FORM

FOR HCRS USE ONLY
RECEIVED
DATE ENTERED

CONTINUATION SHEET Description

ITEM NUMBER 7

PAGE 2

To the east of the original Brewery is a one story with basement building, Circa 1920, with steel joist roof, wood floors and exterior red brick walls. This is characteristically an unadorned warehouse building being used as a sales area practically in its original state.

The Stable Building (B):

This building, "L"-shaped in plan, was originally designed to house the draft horses and beer wagons (Circa 1855).

The mainleg of the "L" is rectangular in plan with red brick exterior walls and a high trussed second floor area used for feed storage above the horse stalls on the ground floor below. There are three ventilating cupolas located at the peak of the roof.

Openings are high double hung windows set in flat arched openings. High small windows were originally set above the horse stalls. There is an interesting corbelled brick rake trim at the ends of the building.

The other leg of the "L" appears to be a later addition. It has a flat roof and seems to have housed a harness and repair shop adjoining the main building and four stalls for the beer wagons. Openings to these stalls are flat arched openings, the arches and parapets emphasized by using a white brick pattern in contrast to the red brick.

Doors which have deteriorated were originally of diagonal planks with sliding hardware at the tack room and hinged openings to the stalls. The openings are now part of an arcade. Two stairways have been added for public safety, but the essential character is unchanged.

The Boiler House (C):

The old Boiler House (Circa 1870), built to supply steam and power to the brewery operations, is rectangular in plan, one high baystory designed to house three large boilers and the accessory pumps and electric power generators.

The building walls are of red brick supporting a steel trussed hip roof with two dormers, one to the east without openings and one to the south with an interesting half round window and carved stone keystone. Other windows are arched and divided into small panes and surrounded by interesting brick arches recessed and corbelling. The structure is topped by a classic profiled metal cornice. A beveled stone belt course runs partially around the base of the building.

To the south side of the building is a formed brick stack 262 feet tall with corbelled brick and projected belt courses near the top. The stack was originally connected to the building with a sheet metal housing, since rusted away. A brick extension matching the character of the original building has been added to the building to the west to house the facilities for a small twin movie theatre.

#### 8. Significance

| Periodprehistoric1400-14991500-15991600-16991700-1799X 1800-18991900- |      | community planning conservation economics | landscape architecture law literature military music philosophy politics government | e religion science sculpture social humanitarian theater transportation other (specify) |
|---|------|---|---|---|
| Specific dates  | 1853 | Builder Architect Joh                     | nn Wagner   |   |

Statement of Significance (in one paragraph)

The Kamm and Schellinger Brewery is significant as an example of turn-of-the-century industria architecture and for its role in the industrial life of the City of Mishawaka. The structures feature Italianate influences such as segmental arched windows and a bracketed cornice. The 100 Center Complex preserves the building exteriors of the late nineteenth century industrial architecture.

One of the extensive and important business enterprises which contributed to the material growth and prominence of Mishawaka is the Kamm and Schellinger Brewing Company, whose extensive establishment was one of the industrial features of the City of Mishawaka. This brewery was established in 1850 by John Wagner and, at that time, was but a small and primitive plant.

In 1870, the brewery was purchased by Adolph Kamm and Clemens Dick, who came from Toledo, Ohio, and the new firm of Dick and Kamm immediately enlarged and improved the plant and commenced the manufacture of a superior quality of beer which at once became popular and increased in demand.

In 1880 the senior partner, Mr. Dick, disposed of his interest and Mr. Kamm associated himself with Nicholas Schellinger, his brother-in-law, and the firm became Kamm & Schellinger. Additional improvements were made and the business continually increased until in 1883 the Kamm & Schellinger Brewing Company was incorporated with a capital of \$65,000.00. Adolph Kamm was president of the company; Nicholas Schellinger, treasurer, and Laura Kamm, the accomplished daughter of Mr. Kamm, secretary.

Since that time, extensive improvements were made and a power house erected. Every modern appliance available at that time adapted for the brewery business was installed, and an artificial ice plant with a capacity of 85 tons was placed in the building. The cellars and vaults were admirably arranged and the bottling department was one of the most perfect of its kind in the state. The output of the brewery was about 30,000 barrels and the demand was constantly increasing and the territory being extended.

The company manufactured the celebrated brand of "Pilsner" beer which had become famous throughout South Bend, Mishawaka and northern Indiana and Michigan. The "export" beers bottled by this company took rank with the first beers manufactured in America and were popular wherever known.

Mr. Rudolph Kamm was the foreman or brew master of the company and was regarded as one of the best master brewers in the state.

Altogether, the brewery of the Kamm & Schellinger Company was one of the best equipped establishments in the country, and it became one of the important industrial institutions of Mishawaka. The officers were well-known businessmen in the city and were identified with its interests for years. They were well-known and highly esteemed in the community and their business was conducted upon the highest plane of business honor and progressive enterprise. The brewery ceased operations in 1951.

FHR-8-300A (11/78)

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR HERITAGE CONSERVATION AND RECREATION SERVICE

## NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES INVENTORY -- NOMINATION FORM

FOR HCRS USE ONLY
RECEIVED
DATE ENTERED.

CONTINUATION SHEET

Significance

ITEM NUMBER

PAGE 2

The property was unoccupied until 1970 when it was acquired and developed into the 100 Center Complex. This group of shops and restaurants has become well-known throughout Indiana as a very successful preservation-adaptive use project.

### 9. Major Bibliographical References

South Bend and Mishawaka: Historical, Description, Biographical. South Bend: Tribune Printing Co., 1901.

| 10. Geographical Data                                      | 2  | Atalantitan ( 1996 - 1996   |
|--|--|---|
| Acreage of nominated property 20 acres                     |  |   |
| Quadrangle name <u>* South Bend</u> East                   |  | Quadrangle scale 1:24000  |
| UMT References   |  | - X   |
| A 116   5   6   7   3   2   0   4   6   1   2   4   7   10 | B 116                                    | 5 6 17 5 14 10 4 16 17 12 4 17 10   |
| Zone Easting Northing                                      | Zone                                     | Easting Northing  |
| c 1,6 56,75,4,0 4,61,23,8,0                                | D [16]                                   | 5 6 17 3 12 10 4 16 17 12 3 10 10   |
| E  | F L                                      |   |
| G  | н  |   |
| Verbal boundary description and justification              | n :                                      | reaste.   |
| See attached for Boundary Description                      | ni asa mpel uja "se<br>kea taul ka attau | ed case had be a programmed that if he  |
| List all states and counties for properties ov             | erlapping state or cou                   | nty boundaries  |
| state Not applicable code                                  | county                                   | code  |
| state code   | county                                   | dinagua a 76 washingan asa asa  |
|  | County                                   | code  |
| 11. Form Prepared By                                       |  |   |
| name/title T Brooks Prodomos Managing                      | Doughusus                                |   |
| name/title T. Brooks Brademas, Managing                    | rarther                                  |   |
| organization 100 Center Partnership                        | date                                     | September 27, 1978  |
| street & number 100 Center Street, P.O. B                  | Box 806 telep                            | phone 219/259-7861  |
| city or town Mishawaka                                     | state                                    | Indiana   |
| 12. State Historic Pres                                    | servation O                              | fficer Certification  |
| The evaluated significance of this property within the     |  | COLO DISTRICTORIO CONTROLO DE |
| nationalstate  | X local                                  | hesistenia leni glaffaserenti y Prodelita   |
| As the designated State Historic Preservation Office       |  | Preservation Act of 1966 (Public Law 90   |
| 665), I hereby nominate this property for inclusion in     | n the National Register and              | d certify that it has been evaluated  |
| according to the criteria and procedures set forth by      | the Heritage Conservation                | on and Recreation Service.  |
| State Historic Preservation Officer signature              |  |   |
| title Indiana State Historic Preservation                  | n Officer                                | date  |
| For HCRS use only  | Riaku Mkur urki                          | Samuel Carlotte Commission Commission   |
| I hereby certify that this property is included in         | n the National Register                  |   |
|  | Property Control                         | date  |
| Keeper of the National Register                            | 4 经国际公司                                  |   |
| Attest:  |  | date  |
| Chief of Registration                                      |  |   |

FHR-8-300A (11/78)

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR HERITAGE CONSERVATION AND RECREATION SERVICE

### NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES INVENTORY -- NOMINATION FORM

FOR HCRS USE ONLY

RECEIVED

DATE ENTERED.

CONTINUATION SHEET

ITEM NUMBER

10 PAGE

The Kamm & Schellinger Brewery property includes a portion of Lots 4, 6, and 8 in Alanson M. Hurd's Addition of Outlots of the Town of St. Joseph Ironworks, now the City of Mishawaka, Indiana.

Commencing at the Northeast corner of said Lot 4; thence South 60 feet more or less to the point of beginning on the South Bank of the Mill Race of the St. Joseph River; thence South 280 feet to the intersection with the Northerly line of the right-of-way, now abandoned, line of the Elkhart & Western Railroad; thence S 67° 04' 30" W along the Northerly line of the right-of-way, now abandoned, 460.0 feet to the intersection of the Easterly line of an asphalt paved road known as Old Stable Road; thence in a northerly direction along the road N 30° 30' 15" W 84.91 feet to a point of tangency; thence 182.36 feet along a curve of 207.06 feet radius to a point of tangency; thence N 19° 57' 30" W 94.39 feet; thence East 250.0 feet; thence North 40.0 feet to the South bank of the Mill Race of the St. Joseph River; thence in a meandering line along the bank 260 feet more or less to the point of beginning.

